
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA 

GREENVILLE DIVISION 

 

         

        : 

E. F. GREENBERG,      : 

        : 

     Plaintiff,  : Case No.:4:15-cv-82 

        : 

  v.      : 

        : 

        : 

MICHAEL G. BROWNING; LYNN J. GOOD;  : Jury Trial Demanded.  

DANIEL R. DiMICCO; JOHN H. FORSGREN;  : 

ANN MAYNARD GRAY; JAMES H. HANCE, JR.; : 

JOHN T. HERRON; JAMES B. HYLER, JR.;  : 

WILLIAM E. KENNARD; E. MARIE McKEE;  : 

RICHARD A. MESERVE; JAMES T. RHODES;  : 

CARLOS A. SALDRIGAS and HARRIS        : 

DE LOACH, JR.      : 

     Defendants.  : 

        : 

 

 

COMPLAINT 
 

 Plaintiff E. F. Greenberg (“plaintiff”), for her complaint against the defendants, alleges as 

follows: 

 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

1. . Plaintiff brings this action against defendants, Harris E. DeLoach, Jr., James H. 

Hance, Jr., Daniel R., John H. Forsgren; Ann Maynard Gray; Michael G. Browning John T. 

Herron, James B. Hyer, Jr., William E. Kennard, DiMicco, E. Marie McKee, Richard A. 

Meserve, James T. Rhodes, Carlos A. Saldrigas and Lynn J. Good (collectively, “defendants”).  

2. The defendants are members of the Board of Directors of Duke Energy 

Corporation (“Duke” or “the Company”).  
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3. Defendants are responsible for and caused Duke to issue a materially incomplete 

and misleading Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement dated March 26, 2015 (the 

“Proxy Statement”) (Exhibit A, hereto) that fails to comply with applicable federal law, 

including Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) regulations governing the content of 

proxy statements.   

4. The Proxy Statement solicited shareholder votes, and included the 

recommendations of the members of the Board of Directors with respect thereto, regarding a 

number of proposals, including the defendants’ proposal and recommendation that they be 

reappointed to the Board of Directors.  

5. Defendants caused Duke to omit material facts and circumstances from, and 

present material facts and circumstances misleadingly in, the Proxy Statement, depriving Duke 

shareholders of material information that a reasonable shareholder would consider important in 

casting a vote as to certain matters referred to in the Proxy Statement.   

6. The Proxy Statement was issued in anticipation of the Annual Meeting of Duke’s 

shareholders, which was scheduled to take place on Thursday, May 7, 2015 in Charlotte, North 

Carolina. 

7. Duke’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders took place as scheduled and, pursuant to 

shareholder votes cast and tabulated on the basis of the materially false and misleading Proxy 

Statement, the Board of Directors was reappointed and re-elected.  

8. On May, 14, 2015, a sentencing hearing took place before the Honorable 

Malcolm J. Howard of the United States District Court for the Eastern District of North Carolina.  

The sentencing hearing followed on the heels of guilty pleas entered that same day by Duke’s 

wholly owned subsidiaries (Duke Energy Business Services, LLC, Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, 
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and Duke Energy Progress, Inc., hereinafter collectively referred to as “Duke”) to nine criminal 

counts charging them with far reaching criminal violations of the federal Clean Water Act. 

9. On the day of the sentencing hearing, for the first time, a number of stunning 

factual admissions that Duke had made months earlier but had not disclosed, were publicly 

revealed.  

10. Duke’s factual admissions demonstrate that the environmental crimes to which 

Duke had pled guilty and admitted were extensive and very specifically documented.  

11. Duke’s admissions establish that the environmental crimes to which Duke had 

pled guilty resulted largely from indifference, at Duke’s highest levels, to known environmental 

risks of which Duke’s management had been warned and was on notice of for years, and in some 

instances, decades. 

12. These admissions also demonstrate a conscious disregard of known and clearly 

identified risks of potential environmental catastrophes that eventually (and predictably) 

materialized, causing significant damage to the environment, the surrounding human population 

and ecostructures, and to Duke itself in the form of massive financial and operational damage, 

and appropriately imposed, but significantly debilitating operational constraints going forward. 

13. Duke’s admissions are recited in a “Joint Statement of Facts” (“Admitted Facts”) 

(Exhibit B hereto), which was filed with the Court at the time of the sentencing hearing on May 

14, 2015. 

14. Duke admitted to the accuracy of the facts and circumstances set forth in the 

Admitted Facts on February 20, 2015 (see Admitted Facts at pp. 60-62) more than a month 

before the Proxy Statement was disseminated to Duke’s shareholders and more than ten weeks 
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before the Annual Meeting of Shareholders where the votes that were called for in the Proxy 

Statement were tabulated. 

15. Yet, despite the fact that the substance of these admitted facts were highly 

relevant and material to the shareholder votes that were solicited by the Proxy Statement, 

particularly as to the re-election of Duke’s Board of Directors, the facts admitted by Duke 

remained concealed so shareholders would not be aware of such facts as they were considering 

their vote on critical corporate governance issues.   

16. The substance of the admitted facts were not publicly disclosed until the day of 

the sentencing hearing on May 14, 2014, one week after the Annual Meeting of Shareholders 

where Duke’s Board of Directors was re-elected at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders. 

17. To be clear, plaintiff is not contending that any plea agreements, plea 

negotiations, sentencing memoranda, or even the Statement of Facts itself were required to be 

included verbatim in the Proxy Statement.  However, the substance of the salient factual matters 

admitted to by Duke were highly material to shareholders called upon to vote upon directors, and 

should have been included in or referred to some meaningful extent in the Proxy Statement, just 

as the Judgment of Sentence, at paragraph 3B requires that Duke advise shareholders of the 

“criminal behavior.”  See ¶ 22, infra.   

18. Further startling disclosures concerning the matters to which Duke had previously 

admitted and agreed to, including appropriately imposed far reaching and stringent monetary and 

non-monetary therapeutic relief and judicial oversight are set forth in the Judgment of 

Conviction and Sentencing (“Judgment”) (Exhibit C hereto)  entered by the Court following the 

sentencing hearing on May 14, 2015.  
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19. The substance of these highly relevant and material facts that Duke admitted to in 

February of 2015 but did not disclose until one week after the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, 

involved a documented course of environmental recklessness. 

20. These admitted facts were so serious and so extensive that Duke’s management 

and Board were deemed to be so unreliable and untrustworthy as to environmental matters, that 

Duke was appropriately required, as part of the Court’s sentence, to agree to cede extensive 

control of the Company’s operations for the foreseeable future to the management of a Court 

Appointed Monitor (“CAM”).  See Judgment, at p. 8-14. 

21. Therefore, the substance of the facts to which Duke had admitted in February of 

2015 was such as to demonstrate that the very individuals who had been entrusted to manage and 

oversee Duke’s compliance with its responsibilities under the environmental laws (including the 

defendants named in this Complaint) had failed so utterly and so completely, that they could no 

longer be trusted to run the Company on their own, without extensive and invasive outside 

monitoring and oversight 

22. The Judgment also directed, at paragraph 3B, that: 

Upon approval of the compliance plans by the Court, the defendant 

shall, in either written correspondence or through electronic mail 

communication, notify its employees of its criminal behavior and 

the compliance plan. In addition, the defendant shall cause a notice 

containing the same information to be sent to the shareholders of 

Duke Energy Corporation is a form and date as prescribed by the 

CAM.  

 

See Judgment (emphasis added). 

 

23. The Court’s sentence thus appropriately recognized that the facts to which Duke 

admitted were so egregious that the Company’s shareholders (who Duke admitted at the 

sentencing hearing would be bearing the substantial financial costs of the sentence) had a 
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legitimate right to be notified about the “criminal behavior” as well as the comprehensive 

remediation and compliance plans that were required to be submitted for approval to the Court, 

The United States Department of Justice, and the United States Environmental Protection 

Agency.   

24. The crimes detailed in these admissions also cost the Company over $100 million 

in fines and penalties imposed by the federal court on May 14, 2015. In imposing sentence, the 

Court reportedly observed that these fines were the largest federal criminal fines in North 

Carolina history. The admitted facts will also potentially give rise to additional penalties and 

sanctions that the Company faces from state and local regulatory and civil lawsuits, sanctions, 

and other damage.  

25. But the disclosure to shareholders that is appropriately contemplated by the 

Court’s sentence will not occur for some time, and will not have any bearing upon the election of 

the Company’s Board of Directors, not even three weeks ago, which took place and was decided 

on the basis of the materially misleading Proxy Statement that omitted any reference to the 

substance of the facts to which Duke had admitted in February but did not disclose until after the 

Annual Meeting.  

26. In a statement issued in connection with the sentencing, Duke reported that its 

settlement “closes a chapter in the company’s history.” 

27. That chapter cannot and will not be closed until the Company’s Board of 

Directors is elected on the basis of honest and complete disclosures of material facts, not what 

was contained in the Proxy Statement on the basis of which they were just reappointed. 

28. The inaccuracies and incomplete disclosures contained in the Proxy Statement 

were material in the sense that the matters disclosed inaccurately and incompletely would have 
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been important to a reasonable shareholder deciding whether to retain Directors responsible for 

these derelictions. 

29. As set forth in greater detail in the Complaint, the revelations and admissions that 

were made public during the sentencing hearing of May 14, 2015 establish that the Proxy 

Statement upon which Duke secured the re-election of its directors earlier this month was 

materially misleading and incomplete. 

30. Plaintiff respectfully submits that it would be appropriate and consistent with the 

federal securities laws, and the judgment of conviction and sentencing entered by this Court on 

May 14, 2015, to direct defendants to issue a corrected proxy statement that accurately discloses 

matters relevant to the qualifications of the directors, and to direct defendants to provide 

shareholders with an opportunity to vote on the retention of directors on the basis of such 

accurate supplemental Proxy Statement.      

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

31. The claims asserted in this Complaint arise under § 14(a) of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 78n(a), and Rule 14a-9, 17 C.F.R. § 

240.14a-9 of the SEC regulations promulgated thereunder, Schedule 14A, 26 C.F.R. § 240.14a-

101. 

32. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action under § 27 of the 

Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78aa, and on 28 U.S.C. § 1331. 

33. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 78aa, and 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and (c), on the following principal grounds: (a) Duke 

conducts business in this District, (b) substantial acts in furtherance of the wrongdoing alleged 

and its effects occurred in this District; and (c) certain of the facts and circumstances that form 
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the basis of this action relate to the facts, circumstances and claims asserted, the facts admitted, 

and the adjudications made in the criminal proceeding in this District captioned United States of 

America v. Duke Energy Progress, Inc., Case No. 5:15-CR-62, 57 and 68, sentencing on which 

took place in this District on May 14, 2015.   

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION 

34. Duke is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware, which 

maintains its principal place of business in Charlotte, North Carolina.   

35. Duke is a diversified energy company operating throughout the United States, and 

is counted among the largest energy producers in the United States.  It describes its business as 

follows in its Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC for the year ending December 31, 2013: 

Duke Energy Corporation (collectively with its subsidiaries, Duke 

Energy) is an energy company headquartered in Charlotte, North 

Carolina. Duke Energy operates in the U.S. primarily through its 

direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries, Duke Energy 

Carolinas, LLC (Duke Energy Carolinas), Carolina Power & Light 

Company d/b/a Progress Energy Carolinas, Inc. (Progress Energy 

Carolinas), Florida Power Corporation d/b/a Progress Energy 

Florida, Inc. (Progress Energy Florida), Duke Energy Ohio, Inc. 

(Duke Energy Ohio), and Duke Energy Indiana, Inc. (Duke Energy 

Indiana), as well as in Latin America through Duke Energy 

International, LLC (DEI). When discussing Duke Energy’s 

consolidated financial information, it necessarily includes the 

results of its six separate subsidiary registrants, Duke Energy 

Carolinas, Progress Energy, Inc. (Progress Energy), Progress 

Energy Carolinas, Progress Energy Florida, Duke Energy Ohio, 

and Duke Energy Indiana (collectively referred to as the 

Subsidiary Registrants), which, along with Duke Energy, are 

collectively referred to as the Duke Energy Registrants. The 

financial information for Progress Energy, Progress Energy 

Carolinas and Progress Energy Florida includes results after July 2, 

2012. 

 

36. By the very nature of its business, Duke is involved in activities which require 

careful and close monitoring of the environmental impact of its business activities. 
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37. Close oversight and great care and cutting edge technology must be utilized to 

insure that, among other things, toxic and dangerous pollutants are not discharged as a result to 

Duke’s activities, and that the Company remains compliant with the many local, state and federal 

regulations that govern Duke’s business and set the ground rules under which companies such as 

Duke operate. 

38. Because of the environmental dangers and risks inherent in Duke’s business, and 

because of the widespread environmental and health related damage that the operations of a 

company like Duke can cause if such risks are not properly managed, the Company is heavily 

regulated at the local, state and federal level.  

39. The primary federal agency regulating Duke is the United States Environmental 

Protection Agency (“EPA”). In its native North Carolina, the primary regulatory agency is the 

North Carolina Department of Environmental and Natural Resources (“DENR”).    

40. There is a plethora of regulatory and statutory provisions that govern Duke’s 

business including, inter alia, at the federal level, the Clean Water Act, and comparable state and 

local provisions.   

41. Certain of these statutes and regulations are enforced as a civil matter.  Others are 

enforced as a regulatory and administrative matter.  Still others, such as the federal Clean Water 

Act, are enforced civilly, administratively, and, in certain cases, even criminally.  All carry the 

prospect of significant punitive sanctions for transgressions that have the potential to have an 

adverse material affect upon the operations, finances and prospects of a heavily regulated 

company such as Duke. 
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42. Duke Energy Corporation, which is a holding company, conducts its business of 

generating and selling energy to the consuming public through the wholly-owned subsidiaries 

identified above.   

43. However, these affiliates do not operate autonomously, and independently.  

Indeed their business, operations and activities are closely directed, coordinated and monitored 

by the senior-most management of Duke Energy Corporation, and overseen by the defendants 

herein, through another wholly-owned affiliate, Duke Energy Business Services, LLC.  

44. Duke Energy Business Services, LLC “provides shared services to all of [Duke 

Energy Corporation’s] utilities nationwide, including: Legal Counsel; Central Engineering & 

Services; Environmental, Health and Safety; Ethics and Compliance; and Coal Combustion 

Products.” Admitted Facts, at ¶ 11. 

45. Therefore, by virtue of centralization provided by Duke Energy Business 

Services, LLC, the activities of Duke’s operating affiliates, including the operations and 

activities of Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC and Duke Energy Progress, LLC as described in this 

Complaint and in the Admitted Facts operate under the direction and supervision of Duke’s 

senior management and are overseen and monitored by the director defendants named herein. 

46. Duke Energy Corporation’s senior most management, as well as the director 

defendants who had the responsibility to oversee the Company’s operations, were therefore 

centrally linked to the illegal and improper activities that Duke has admitted to in the Statement 

of Facts, and were either aware of or recklessly disregarded such admitted facts. 

47. This circumstance is highly relevant and material to the question of whether they 

should be re-elected to the Company’s Board of Directors.  

48. Duke’s stock is publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange.  

Case 4:15-cv-00082-BO   Document 1   Filed 05/26/15   Page 10 of 37



11 

 

49. Plaintiff asserts no claim in this Complaint against Duke. 

PARTIES 

50. Plaintiff E. F. Greenberg is currently a Duke shareholder and has been a 

shareholder continuously during the period of time relevant to this lawsuit through the present.   

51. The individual defendants (the “Director Defendants”) are members of the Board 

of Directors of Duke, serving on committees of the Board of Directors as follows: 

 

Director Board Committees 

 

Michael G. Browning Audit, Corporate Governance, Finance & 

Risk Management 

Harris E. DeLoach, Jr. Corporate Governance, Nuclear Oversight 

John H. Forsgren 

 

Finance & Risk Management, Nuclear 

Oversight 

Ann Maynard Gray  Corporate Governance, Compensation, 

Finance & Risk Management 

James H. Hance, Jr. 

 

Audit, Compensation, Finance & Risk 

Management 

John T. Herron 

 

Nuclear Oversight, Regulatory Policy & 

Operations 

James B. Hyer, Jr. 

 

Audit, Finance & Risk Management, 

Regulatory Policy & Operations 

William E. Kennard Corporate Governance, Finance & Risk 

Management, Regulatory Policy & 

Operations 

E. Marie McKee Audit, Compensation, Corporate 

Governance 

Richard A. Meserve Nuclear Oversight, Regulatory Policy & 

Operations 

James T. Rhodes Nuclear Oversight, Regulatory Policy & 

Operations 

Carlos A. Saldrigas  Audit, Compensation, Regulatory Policy & 

Operations 

Lynn J. Good Vice Chairman, President and CEO 
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THE PROXY STATEMENT 

52. Defendants are responsible for the contents of, and caused Duke to prepare and 

disseminate, the Proxy Statement to solicit the proxies of Duke’s shareholders with respect to the 

matters referred to therein. 

53. In connection with the solicitations of proxies, the defendants made 

recommendations with respect thereto.  

54. The Proxy Statement was intended to procure Duke’s shareholders’ votes with 

respect to matters significantly affecting Duke that legally required shareholder approval, 

including but not limited to the election of the Director Defendants based upon the Board’s 

recommendation contained in the Proxy Statement. 

55. Through the Proxy Statement, the defendants solicited shareholder votes with 

respect to proposals concerning the following topics: 

Election/Re-election of directors of the Company; 

 

Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Duke Energy 

Corporation’s independent public accountant for 2015; 

 

Advisory vote to approve Duke’s named executive officer compensation; 

 

Approval of the Duke’s 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan; 

 

Shareholder proposal regarding limitation of accelerated executive pay; 

 

Shareholder proposal regarding political contribution disclosure; and 

 

Shareholder proposal regarding proxy access. 

 

The proposals are described at pp. 11-77 of the Proxy Statement. 

 

56. With respect to the election of directors, the Proxy Statement represents that 

“[t]he Board of Directors of Duke Energy has nominated the following 14 candidates to serve on 
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the Board.  We have a declassified Board of Directors, which means all of our directors are voted 

on every year at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders.” 

57. The Proxy Statement identified the members of Duke’s Board of Directors who 

were being recommended for re-election, along with the Board Committees on which they would 

continue to serve if re-elected. 

58. Each of these proffered nominees to the Board of Directors served in similar 

capacities during the period of time covered by the Complaint (with the exception of defendant 

Meserve, who was appointed to Duke’s Board of Directors in February of 2015 and did not serve 

on Duke’s Board of Directors before that. Notwithstanding his relatively recent appointment to 

the Board, he was a director at the time the Proxy Statement was prepared, issued and 

disseminated.) 

59. The Proxy Statement advised, at p. 11, that “[t]wo of our current directors, 

Messrs. Bernhardt and Reinsch, will be retiring at our 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareholders in 

accordance with our Principles for Corporate Governance.  Therefore, they are not nominated for 

re-election.” 

THE PROXY STATEMENT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE QUALIFICATIONS AND 

RESPONSIBILITIE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

60. The Proxy Statement touted the purported qualifications of the proffered Board 

members, at p. 11, as including: 

-  “Diverse backgrounds” 

- “Board business experience” 

- “Wide range of skills to address Duke Energy’s evolving business needs” 

- “Responsive to shareholders: 

- “Industry expertise.” 
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61. In the Proxy Statement, Duke generally described the Board’s responsibility to 

oversee the business and affairs of the Company so as to ensure that the Company was 

complying with all applicable laws and regulations.  

62. Through the Proxy Statement, defendants represent that members of Duke’s 

Board of Directors closely monitored and were aware of and familiar with the Company’s 

operations and were, therefore, well-positioned to ensure that they discharged their obligation to 

ensure that Duke operated and remained compliant with its legal obligations. 

63. Therefore, by virtue of their own statements in the Proxy Statement and the fair 

and reasonable inference of those admissions, the Director Defendants were fully aware of the 

adverse material facts that were omitted from, and misleadingly disclosed in, the Proxy 

Statement. 

64. For example, the Proxy Statement represents in several places that the Board is 

fully aware of the Company’s material operations, stating at p. 20 as follows: 

“Each Committee of the Board is responsible for the oversight of 

certain areas of risk that pertain to that committee’s area of focus. 

Throughout the year, each Committee chair regularly reports to the 

full Board regarding the committee’s considerations and actions 

relating to the risks within its area of focus.” 

 

65. The Proxy Statement thus represents, in substance, that ultimately, responsibility 

for compliance with the many environmental laws, regulations and principles lay squarely with 

the Board of Directors, who (according to the Proxy Statement itself) carefully monitor the 

Company’s operations for such risks. 

66. The Proxy Statement states at page 20 under the heading “Risk Management 

Oversight Structure,” that: 

“The Company faces a myriad of risks, including operational, 

financial and reputational risks that affect every segment of its 
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business. The Board of Directors is actively involved in the 

oversight of these risks in several ways. This oversight is 

conducted primarily through the Finance and Management 

Committee of the Board but also through other committees of the 

Board as appropriate. The Board of Directors annually reviews the 

Company’s enterprise risk assessment with management, including 

the Chief Risk Officer. This detailed risk assessment identifies the 

broad range of risks that affect the Company, their probabilities 

and severity and reviews the Company’s approach to managing 

and prioritizing those risks, based on input from officers 

responsible for their management.” 

 

 

67. The Proxy Statement goes on to describe the Duke Board’s Committee structure, 

which is described as establishing the infrastructure and the means through which the members 

of the Board became and stayed aware of the material details of the Company’s operation and the 

material risks faced by it. 

68. For example, the Proxy Statement at p. 25, describes the composition and 

responsibilities of the Board’s “Regulatory Policy and Operations Committee.” The Proxy 

Statement states, in relevant part, that: 

“The Regulatory Policy and Operations Committee provides 

oversight of Duke Energy’s regulatory strategy and environmental, 

health and safety issues and the risks related to such issues, 

including our ash management strategy, as well as the public 

policies and practices of Duke Energy.  This includes reviewing 

Duke Energy’s regulatory approach to strategic initiatives, the 

operations performance of Duke Energy’s utilities with regard to 

energy supply, delivery, fuel procurement and transportation and 

making visits to Duke Energy’s generation facilities.  It is also 

responsible for the oversight of Duke Energy’s environmental, 

health and safety goals and policies as well as its policies and 

practices with respect to its political activities and community 

affairs.” 

 

69. The Proxy Statement then further describes, also at page 6, the “Regulatory Policy 

and Operations Committee” of the Board of Directors, whose areas of responsibility are reported 
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to include “[o]versees risks related to the Company’s operations, including environmental health 

and safety,” and “[o]versees risks related to public policy and political activities.” 

70. The Proxy Statement also describes, at p. 24, the composition and responsibility 

of the  Board’s Corporate Governance Committee: 

“The Corporate Governance Committee considers risks and 

matters related to corporate governance and formulates and 

periodically revises governance principles.  It recommends the size 

and composition of the Board of Directors and its committees and 

recommends potential successors to the Chief Executive Officer.  

This committee also recommends to the Board of Directors the 

slate of nominees, including any nominees recommended by 

shareholders, for director for each year’s annual meeting of 

shareholders and, when vacancies occur, names of individuals who 

would make suitable directors of Duke Energy.  This committee 

may engage an external search firm or a third party to identify or 

evaluate or to assist in identifying or evaluating a potential 

nominee.  The committee also performs an annual evaluation of 

the performance of the determination of director independence and 

review of any related person transactions.” 

 

71. The Proxy Statement also describes, at p. 24, the composition and role of the  

Board’s Finance and Risk Management Committee is defined as: 

“The Finance and Risk Management Committee is primarily 

responsible for the oversight of financial risk and enterprise level 

risk assessment at the Company.  This oversight function includes 

review of Duke Energy’s financial and fiscal affairs and 

recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding dividends, 

financing and fiscal policies, and significant transactions.  It 

reviews the financial exposure of Duke Energy, as well as 

mitigation strategies, reviews Duke Energy’s risk exposure as 

related to overall company portfolio and impact on earnings, and 

reviews the financial impacts of major projects as well as capital 

expenditures.” 

 

72. Therefore, by the defendants’ own admission in the Proxy Statement, Duke’s 

Board of Directors and, in particular, the committees thereof, monitor and are aware of the true 
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risks, violations and exposure the Company has when it comes to material environmental, 

corporate governance and risk management issues.  

73. It is a fair summary of these provisions of the Proxy Statement to say that they 

depict and acknowledge that the members of the Board are fully engaged in, and familiar with, 

the operations and policies of the Company through the manner in which the Board, its 

Committees, and reporting lines are structured. 

74. Given the considerable degree of personal oversight and involvement the Board 

exercises with respect to the Company’s operations, as the Proxy Statement itself makes clear, 

the actual diligence, qualifications, integrity and job performance of the individual Board 

members is highly relevant to a candid assessment of their job performance, as would be any 

established failure by the Director Defendants to take prudent steps to manage the Company’s 

risks and steer the Company prudently through the operational risks it faces.  

75. These circumstances are also highly relevant and material to the question of 

whether the Director Defendants should be allowed to continue as Directors of the Company 

when they are presented for shareholder approval annually in Duke’s proxy statements.  

76. This applies with particular force, where, as here, the Board members 

enthusiastically recommend to shareholders that they be rehired. 

77. It is, therefore, critical that, in order for Duke’s shareholders to be in position to 

make meaningful decisions and cast meaningful and informed votes concerning the 

reappointment (or rejection, as the case may be) of Board members annually, all relevant and 

material facts that bear or reflect upon the job performance and qualifications of the Directors, 

especially those that are admitted facts, be included within the four corners of the Proxy 

Statement in a full, candid and materially complete and contextual manner. 
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THE DIRECTOR DEFENDANTS’ VIOLATION OF THEIR OBLIGATIONS TO 

DISCLOSE MATERIAL FACTS IN THE PROXY STATEMENT 

 

78. The Director Defendants were obligated by law to disclose in the Proxy Statement 

all material information relevant to the matters as to which the Board was recommending 

shareholders to cast a vote, including but not limited to the election of the Director Defendants.  

79. Despite their obligations under applicable federal law, the Director Defendants 

caused Duke to prepare, file and disseminate the Proxy Statement to Duke shareholders in 

materially incomplete and misleading form in order to secure the election of directors supported 

by the Director Defendants. 

80. Defendants failed to disclose highly relevant facts in the Proxy Statement that, if 

revealed, would be material to the vote of a reasonable shareholder with respect to the  election 

of directors. 

81. Indeed, the substance of the admitted facts related to conduct that was so 

extensive, long standing, and demonstrated such a dereliction of duty by the Duke’s leaders 

(including the Director Defendants) that defendants and senior management of Duke were 

appropriately required by federal prosecutors and regulators to effectively cede significant 

operational control of Duke’s affairs to a Court-appointed Monitor for the foreseeable future. See 

Judgment, at pp. 8-14.  

82. Notwithstanding the critical importance of disclosing all facts material to the 

election of Duke’s directors, which is critical to an effective and honest corporate suffrage 

process, the Proxy Statement fails to disclose known material facts – indeed admitted facts – 

concerning serious environmental transgressions, and conscious disregard of known risks 

spanning in some instances for years and in several instances for decades. 
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83. The Proxy Statement thus materially understates and obscures the full extent the 

Board’s acquiescence in the Company’s extensive violations of law, their disregard of known 

facts and risks, and the likely financial impact of those violations and derelictions upon the 

operations, performance, reputation and bottom line of Duke.  

84. These are matters that bear directly upon the competence of the Board of 

Directors and Company management, and are matters that are required to be stated fully, 

candidly and contextually in order for shareholders to make informed decisions concerning the 

matters that they are asked to vote upon in the Proxy Statement, and the validity and integrity of 

the Board’s recommendations to shareholders as to how those votes should be exercised. The 

Proxy Statement fails this test at every level. 

85. Duke Energy has for many years been a serial violator of its obligations to comply 

with applicable environmental and safety laws and regulations. It has been the subject of 

extensive litigation, on civil, administrative/regulatory, and even criminal law matters. 

86. One of Duke’s more significant recent transgressions occurred when, in February 

of 2014, tons of coal ash were released from Duke’s Dan River (North Carolina) steam station 

into the Dan River, causing substantial damage to the surrounding and adjacent properties.  

87. The Proxy Statement, at p. 43, describes this incident and certain aspects of its 

fallout and impact on Duke and its finances, including the payment of approximately $90 million 

for consulting, engineering, legal and other costs relating to the remediation of the Dan River ash 

spill. 

88. The Proxy Statement also cryptically states that Duke “had entered into a 

proposed agreement with the U.S. Government that, if approved by the United States District 

Court for the Eastern District of North Carolina, would close a federal grand jury investigation 
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related to the Dan River coal ash and ash basin operations at other North Carolina coal plants. If 

approved, Duke Energy’s subsidiaries will pay approximately $102 million in fines, restitution, 

community service and mitigation.”   

89. The Proxy Statement likewise reported that the compensation of certain of the 

Company’s executives was reduced to account for certain of the fines, costs and sanctions the 

Company faced as a result of the Dan River incident, ostensibly (see Proxy Statement at p. 43) 

“[i]n order to hold the senior leaders of Duke Energy accountable for its financial and 

operational performance.”  

90. Defendants represented in the Proxy Statement, at p. 5, that: 

“We made significant progress in advancing our coal ash 

management practices as we responded to the early February 2014 

coal ash incident at our Dan River site. We have begun to 

accelerate plans to close ash basins across our system. We have 

formed a new internal organization to manage all coal combustion 

products and an advisory board of independent experts in 

engineering, waste management, environmental and risk analysis.” 

 

91. The clear implication of the foregoing disclosures in the Proxy Statement was the 

Company’s environmental compliance issues and potential liabilities to the federal government 

were resolved by the payment of fines and restitution and were largely remedied.  

92. The further implication of these disclosures in the Proxy Statement is that the 

persons responsible for the Dan River and other ash leaks were officers of the Company and that 

they were held accountable for their derelictions in the form of reduced pay and benefit. The 

even further implication was that the Company’s environmental problems and related risks were 

well contained and confined to manageable proportions. 

93. The Proxy Statement’s disclosures concerning the Company’s environmental 

matters are materially false and misleading.  

Case 4:15-cv-00082-BO   Document 1   Filed 05/26/15   Page 20 of 37



21 

 

94. The Proxy Statement misleadingly attempts to shift responsibility for the fact and 

a very small part expense of these matters exclusively to Duke’s managers and officers. In fact, 

the derelictions came about directly as a result of the failure of the members of Duke’s Board of 

Directors, whom the defendants solicit shareholder votes to reappoint themselves (at the 

defendants’ own recommendations) – to implement, devise and execute appropriate safeguards 

and procedures to protect the affected members of the public from the danger of, and protect the 

Company from the cost, expense, and other damage resulting from, Duke’s culture of 

environmental recklessness. 

95. The clear implication of the Proxy Statement is that that, if anything, Company 

management and operational personnel came up short in certain non-specific respects and that 

the Board of Directors held them to account and made the problem manageable.  

96. In truth, the problem started with the members of the Board of Directors during 

the relevant period, the acquiescence of such directors in wrongful conduct and the Board’s lax 

risk management policies and execution more generally.  

97. These circumstances – and a related pointed disclosure of the material facts as to 

what occurred, would enable Duke shareholders to make their own determinations as to 

responsibility for these transgressions.  These facts would be highly relevant and material to a 

reasonable shareholder exercising his or her right to vote to appoint or retain one or more 

members of the Duke Board of Directors. 

98. Beyond its inaccurate depiction of Duke’s environmental transgressions as being 

contained and largely the doing of the Company’s officers and managers and not the result of 

derelictions of duty by members of the Board of Directors, the Proxy Statement minimized was 
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materially false and misleading in that it suggested that the resolution was limited and in large 

measure contained. 

99. Completely absent from the four corners of the Proxy Statement is that the 

Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries Duke Energy Business Services, LLC, Duke Energy 

Carolinas, LLC, and Duke Energy Progress, Inc.) were facing federal criminal charges arising 

out of the Dan River and ash spills at numerous other locations throughout North Carolina, and 

include criminal charges based upon the following criminal violations of the Clean Water Act, 

33 U.S.C. §§ 1311, 1319(c)(1)(A), and 1342, as well as aiding and abetting such violations 

pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2: 

Negligent discharge of pollutants from a point source, and aiding 

and abetting, in violation of the Clean Water Act; 

 

Failure to maintain treatment system equipment and related 

appurtenances, and aiding and abetting, in violation of the Clean 

Water Act; 

 

Negligent discharge of pollutants from a point source, and aiding 

and abetting, in violation of the Clean Water Act; 

 

Failure to maintain treatment system equipment and related 

appurtenances, and aiding and abetting, in violation of the Clean 

Water Act; 

 

Failure to maintain treatment system equipment and related 

appurtenances, and aiding and abetting, in violation of the Clean 

Water Act; 

 

Failure to maintain treatment system equipment and related 

appurtenances, and aiding and abetting, in violation of the Clean 

Water Act. 

 

100. Also completely absent from the Proxy Statement is that the proposed resolution 

includes an agreement by the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries to multiple (at least nine) 
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federal criminal charges, with sentencing scheduled first for April 16, 2015 and then rescheduled 

to for May 14, 2015, where the Court would retain substantial discretion to impose significant 

additional criminal sanctions and penalties beyond the purely monetary sanctions that are 

vaguely (and misleadingly) described in the Proxy Statement as being part of Duke’s resolution 

with the “U.S. government.”  

101. Duke did, for sure, refer to and describe very generally the North Carolina ash 

basin grand jury investigation the anticipation that there would be guilty pleas, and the potential 

financial magnitude of the guilty pleas, and the likelihood of therapeutic relief as a result, in its 

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 that was filed with the SEC 

in late February of 2015.  The 10-K, which was neither attached to, nor incorporated by 

reference in the Proxy Statement itself omitted from that a plethora of material facts, the 

substance of which is reflected in the Admitted Facts that were admitted as true at or about the 

same time the 10-K was filed in February of 2015, but were disclose publicly until May 14, 

2014, a week after the Annual Meeting of Shareholders and related shareholder votes pursuant to 

the Proxy Statement.  

102. Within its four corners, the Proxy Statement appears therefore to be an effort to 

falsely depict that resolution as largely a matter of paying money. In fact, by virtue of that 

“resolution,” if in fact it is approved by the Court, the Company’s affiliates would become 

convicted federal criminals, placing at risk Duke’s status as a federal contractor. 

103.  Therefore, Duke shareholders, who were called upon to exercise their vote with 

respect to the election of Board members have not been provided with a full, fair and candid 

presentation of all material facts relating to the qualifications and performance of the Directors 

for whom they are being asked to vote, have only been provided with a misleadingly incomplete 
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picture of the extent of such massive misconduct that occurred on the defendants’ watch, the 

stunning and compelling details of which were admitted to in writing in February of 2015, before 

the issuance of the Proxy Statement, but concealed until after the Annual Meeting of 

Shareholders.  

104. The original sentencing hearing for Duke’s guilty plea to the federal criminal 

charges was initially set for April 16, 2015, prior to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders. 

However, the sentencing hearing was adjourned at the eleventh hour amid concerns that Duke’s 

guilty plea, and its resulting status as a convicted federal criminal, could have resulted in Duke’s 

ineligibility and debarment from federal contracting business and opportunities.   

105. In areas where the Company does not have a monopoly, such debarment could 

well have resulted result in its disqualification from lucrative energy agreements it has to provide 

energy to federal facilities and government subcontractors, including military installations, post 

offices, prisons, road construction projects, federal courthouses and other federal facilities 

throughout North Carolina and elsewhere.  

106. Although Duke subsequently was able to receive a waiver from debarment with 

respect to many of its government contracts, the fact that debarment was a risk at the time the 

Proxy Statement was issued was a material circumstance that was not disclosed in the Proxy 

Statement.  

107. Before adjourning the April 16 sentencing hearing, the Court presiding over the 

Duke criminal case, reportedly expressed concern that putting a company as large as Duke on 

federal probation had “caused a considerable amount of work and effort for this Court.” 
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108. The sentencing was delayed to May 14, 2015 on account of the Company’s 

request for a delay due primarily, as it maintained, to its ongoing efforts to avoid being debarred 

from federal contracts. 

109. Therefore, not only does the Proxy Statement not mention that Duke had agreed 

to become a convicted federal criminal as part of its misleadingly described “resolution” with the 

“U.S. government,” it omitted key admissions that the Duke made and signed in February 2015 

but kept secret until after the Annual Meeting and shareholder vote. 

110. In fact, with defendants knowledge and acquiescence, the Company aggressively 

(and by all appearances desperately), filed motions before the Court that was presiding over the 

criminal matter, seeking to maintain factual information contained in their pleadings under seal 

and beyond the view of the public, including Duke’s shareholders. 

111. The defendants therefore deprived shareholders of material information 

concerning the implications of their conduct so that shareholders could have assessed such facts 

when they were asked to re-elect the very members of the Board of Directors that had either 

caused or acquiesced in the conduct that resulted in Duke finding itself in its present 

circumstances. 

112. These are matters that bear directly upon the qualifications and competence of 

these individuals to serve as corporate directors, and are certainly matters that a reasonable 

shareholder would consider important in casting a vote with respect to the re-election of the 

directors. 

113. In a similar vein, the Proxy Statement makes no mention of ongoing liability and 

exposure that the Company potentially faces as a result of continuing investigations and 
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proceedings by the North Carolina Department of Environmental and Natural Resources 

(“DENR”).  

114. Further, there are reports that there are ongoing investigations into the relationship 

between Duke and DENR employees stemming from the DENR’s aborted bid to allow Duke to 

settle serious state regulatory claims for de minimis consideration.  

115. No mention is made in the Proxy Statement of these facts and circumstances, 

which could have a very substantial effect upon the operations, finances and operations of Duke, 

and could result in substantial financial exposure and penalties.   

116. These facts and circumstances are the subject of a shareholder derivative lawsuit 

alleging breach of fiduciary duty and mismanagement against certain of Duke’s directors in 

Delaware state court. That case has been stayed by agreement of the parties for over one year. 

117. More recently, in March, 2015, yet another shareholder suit was filed by a Duke 

shareholder in the Mecklenberg (North Carolina) Superior Court and assigned to that Court’s 

Business Court as a Complex Case.  

118. While the Complaint in the more recent North Carolina state court case is 

reportedly filed under seal, describe the case which alleges breach of fiduciary duty and 

mismanagement claims against certain of Duke’s directors arising from the questions that have 

been raised about Duke’s relationship and dealings with the DENR, as well as for allowing 

“years of coal ash contamination in North Carolina and Virginia.”  

119. The Complaint reportedly names as defendants all of Duke’s current Board 

Members, with the exception of Richard Meserve, who joined Duke’s Board in early 2015. 

120. Documents reportedly filed in the lawsuit reportedly assert that Duke’s Directors 

dereliction of their duties “consciously and routinely endangered the lives and health of the 
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public, wildlife and vegetation by exposing them to carcinogens and polluting North Carolina’s 

and Virginia’s environment.” 

121. The Proxy Statement makes no mention of the substantial, ongoing potential 

exposure the Company faces as a result of these matters and, to the contrary, makes it appear as 

though the Company’s environmental exposure is controlled, quantified, and on its way to 

correction. 

122. In fact, the Company’s admission of February of 2015 as set forth in the Admitted 

Facts and Judgment, were concealed until May 14, 2015, after the Annual Meeting and 

shareholder vote.  

123. A reasonable shareholder reading the Proxy Statement was deprived of relevant 

material information that would certainly be relevant to whether and how that shareholder would 

cast his or her vote with respect to corporate directors. 

124. This applies with particular force to the defendants who, Duke’s emphasis and 

admission, closely monitored, supervised and managed the affairs of the Company during the 

period of time that these additional and very substantial environmental offenses were occurring.  

125. These material facts and circumstances, which are not disclosed in the Proxy 

Statement, bear directly upon the competence and integrity of the Director Defendants, and are 

certainly the types of facts and circumstances that would be relevant to a reasonable shareholder 

called upon to vote with respect to the election or re-election of directors. 

126. One can hardly imagine any more important characteristics to be considered 

before allowing someone to remain as a Director of a company with the size, breadth of 

operations, and extent of operational risk factors faced by Duke on a daily basis given the 
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statement in the Proxy Statement touting the competence, integrity, involvement, engagement, 

and personal accountability of the Directors. 

127. The defendants caused Duke to issue and disseminate the Proxy Statement to 

plaintiff and other Duke shareholders to solicit their votes for the election/re-election of 

themselves as directors. 

128. As alleged in greater detail above, the Proxy Statement contains materially 

inaccurate and incomplete disclosures. 

129. The Proxy Statement was issued in anticipation of the annual meeting of Duke’s 

shareholders, that was scheduled to take place on Thursday, May 7, 2015 in Charlotte, North 

Carolina. 

130. Duke’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders took place as scheduled and, pursuant to 

the materially false and misleading Proxy Statement, the Board of Directors was reappointed and 

re-elected. 

131. One week later, Duke’s sentencing hearing took place before this Court on May 

14, 2015. United States District Court Judge Malcolm Howard presided. 

132. In connection with the sentencing hearing, Duke and the federal prosecutors 

submitted and filed the Admitted Facts with the Court on May 14, 2015. 

133. Although not filed with the Court until May 14, 2015, the facts were 

acknowledged on February 20, 2015, before the Proxy Statement was disseminated to Duke’s 

shareholders, and nearly 11 weeks before the shareholder vote contemplated by the Proxy 

Statement. 
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134. In the Admitted Facts, Duke and the United States agreed that the “Joint Factual 

Statement is a true and accurate statement of the Defendants' criminal conduct and that it 

provides a sufficient basis for the Defendants ' pleas of guilty…” Admitted Facts at p. 1.  

135. The facts are not unadjudicated allegations. To the contrary, they are admissions.   

136. A central admission is that Duke, through its Energy Business Services subsidiary, 

“provides shared services to all of its utilities nationwide, including: Legal Counsel; Central 

Engineering & Services; Environmental, Health and Safety; Ethics and Compliance; and Coal 

Combustion Products.” Admitted Facts at ¶11. 

137. This key admission establishes and corroborated that Duke was a central link to 

the activities of the subsidiaries that were the subject of the criminal prosecution and that the 

activities of those subsidiaries were monitored centrally at Duke.  

138. This admission is consistent with the statements in the Proxy Statement that 

Duke’s management and Board of Directors oversaw and are responsible for the operations of the 

Company’s operating affiliates. 

139. There are, accordingly, key factual admissions, never theretofore made public, of 

the extent of the lack of sound environmental risk management at Duke. 

140. At the hearing, on May 14, 2015, Duke’s wholly owned subsidiaries pleaded guilty 

to nine criminal violations of the federal Clean Water Act. 

141. Before sentence was imposed, federal prosecutors reportedly outlined numerous, 

specific instances whereby Duke’s senior management repeatedly ignored warnings and other 

indications of impending environmental disaster, some dating back decades. 

142. Indeed, one press report summarized the startling revelations at the hearing as 

follows: 
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As Duke Energy pleaded guilty Thursday to nine criminal 

violations of the federal Clean Water Act in a North Carolina 

courtroom, federal prosecutors recounted examples where time and 

again the nation’s largest electricity company failed to prevent its 

illegal pollution. 

 

Two years before the massive February 2014 spill at a Duke ash 

dump in Eden coated 70 miles of the Dan River in gray sludge, 

engineers at the plant twice requested $20,000 from company 

headquarters to use a robotic camera to inspect aging drainage 

pipes, including the one that later collapsed, triggering the disaster. 

 

Prosecutors said Duke executives denied the request both times, 

even after a top manager at the plant personally pleaded for the 

money to inspect the pipes.  

 

*    *    * 

 

The judge also sentenced Duke to five years’ probation. Under the 

terms, the company will be monitored for compliance with the 

Clean Water Act. If it violates the law while on probation, Duke 

could be subject to further action by the court. 

 

The sentencing came after prosecutors told Howard that Duke 

ignored repeated warnings about problems at its coal ash pits. The 

ash, which is the waste left behind when coal is burned to generate 

electricity, contains such toxic heavy metals as arsenic, selenium, 

chromium and mercury. 

 

Duke admitted guilt to environmental violations at its coal-fired 

power plants in Eden, Moncure, Asheville, Goldsboro and Mt. 

Holly. 

 

Prosecutors said that Duke’s illegal pollution had been going on as 

far back as 2010. 

 

At the Moncure plant, employees informed supervisors in 2011 

that a riser pipe that drained the basin was leaking, but no action 

was taken for two years, prosecutors said. As a result, Duke was 

criminally negligent in properly maintaining essential equipment. 

In another example, Duke illegally channeled contaminated 

wastewater seeping from its Asheville dump into the French Broad 

River. 

 

Holding the company’s plea agreement in his hand, Howard went 

through each charge and asked if the company had engaged in 
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these illegal actions. Julia Janson, the company’s chief legal 

officer, replied yes. 

 

Then the judge asked how Duke was pleading to each count. And 

each time, she replied softly, “Guilty.” 

 

“They should have been monitoring better, they should have been 

fixing what they saw, they should have been listening to their 

employees,” said Assistant Attorney General John C. Cruden, who 

supervises the prosecution of environmental crimes at the U.S. 

Justice Department. “If they had done that, the spill we saw would 

not have occurred.”  http://www.srnnews.com/duke-energy-pleads-

guilty-to-causing-illegal-pollution/. 

 

143. This same news report also stated that: 

While the pleas resolve the federal criminal charges against Duke, 

government officials pointedly did not declare the coal ash 

investigation over.  

 

Walker’s subpoenas also went to 18 past or current officials of the 

state Department of Environment and Natural Resources, although 

none have been charged. 

 

The settlement also doesn’t resolve state investigations. Duke is 

fighting a $25 million state fine levied in March for contamination 

at the Sutton power plant in Wilmington. The state has also cited 

Duke for violations at its Asheville plant but has not issued a fine. 

Duke also faces more than a dozen lawsuits over ash 

contamination filed by North Carolina and advocacy groups, and 

six shareholder suits claiming company officers and directors 

placed Duke at financial risk. 

 

144. Other examples presented at the hearing were a staggering array of facts that had 

been made as early as February of 2015 but revealed publicly for the first time after the Annual 

Meeting of Shareholders. 

145. A federal prosecutor is reported to have aptly summarized these facts at the 

sentencing hearing by stating “[t]hey should have been monitoring better, they should have been 

fixing what they saw, they should have been listening to their employees.” 
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146. The Court sentenced Duke to pay $102 million ($68 million in fines and $34 

million on environmental projects), a sentence that the Court observed was the largest federal 

criminal fine in North Carolina history. 

147. The Court’s sentence, which is reflected in the Judgment dated May 14, 2015, 

also directed Duke to take additional, therapeutic steps, including the establishment and 

implementation of a Court Appointed Monitor (“CAM”) who would oversee Duke’s 

environmental compliance during the five year probationary period included in the sentence. See 

Exhibit A to Judgment, paragraph 2A.  

148. The Judgment also directed, at paragraph 3B, that: 

Upon approval of the compliance plans by the Court, the defendant 

shall, in either written correspondence or through electronic mail 

communication, notify its employees of its criminal behavior and 

the compliance plan. In addition, the defendant shall cause a notice 

containing the same information to be sent to the shareholders of 

Duke Energy Corporation is a form and date as prescribed by the 

CAM.  

 

149. Duke had reportedly said in statements and court filings that the costs of the 

settlement will be borne by its shareholders, not passed on to its electricity customers. 

150. The Court’s sentence appropriately recognizes that the Company’s shareholders 

have a right to know the details of the environmental crimes and lapses that has cost their 

Company over $100 million in fines and penalties imposed by the federal court on May 15, 

2015, additional penalties and sanctions that it potentially faces from state and local regulatory 

and civil sanctions, massive multi-million dollar exposure it faces in civil lawsuits arising from 

these matters.  
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151. But the disclosure that is contemplated by the Court’s sentence will not occur for 

some time, and will not have any bearing upon the election of the Company’s Board of 

Directors, just last week, on the basis of the materially misleading Proxy Statement.  

152. However, the Company’s shareholders were entitled to know these same facts 

before casting their vote for directors just a few short weeks ago, when the facts were known to 

the defendant but misrepresented misleadingly in, and omitted from, the Proxy Statement. 

153. The members of the Company’s Board of Directors were re-elected on May 7, 

2015, just last week, on the basis of thee misleading Proxy Statement. 

154. On May 18, 2015, Duke took out a full page advertisement in the national edition 

of the The Wall Street Journal to issue the following formal apology: 

  A PUBLIC APOLOGY FROM DUKE ENERGY 

On February 2, 2014, a storm water pipe that ran beneath a coal 

ash basin at the Dan River Steam Station in Rockingham County, 

North Carolina collapsed, releasing approximately 39,000 tons of 

ash and 27 million gallons of coal ash waste water into the Dan 

River. 

 

Under a Plea Agreement with the United States (through the 

Department of Justice Environmental Crimes Section and U.S. 

Attorneys’ Offices for the Eastern, Middle and Western Districts of 

North Carolina), Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, and two other 

Duke Energy Corporation subsidiaries, Duke Energy Progress, Inc. 

and Duke Energy Business Services LLC, pleaded guilty to nine 

misdemeanor criminal violations of the Clean Water Act at several 

facilities which they own and operate.  In addition to the spill at 

Dan River, these violations included failing to maintain equipment 

at the Dan River and Cape Fear facilities and unlawfully 

discharging coal ash waste water from seeps at the impoundments 

at the Asheville, Lee, and Riverbend facilities.  As part of this Plea 

Agreement, these companies will: 

 Pay a criminal fine in the amount of $68,0000,000; 

 Make a community service payment in the amount of 

$24,000,000 to the National Fish and Wildlife 
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Foundation for the benefit of riparian environment and 

ecosystems of North Carolina and Virginia; 

 Provide $10,000,000 to an authorized wetlands 

mitigation bank for the purchase of wetlands or riparian 

lands to offset the long-term environmental impacts of 

our coal ash basins; 

 Pay restitution to the federal, state, and local 

governments that responded to the Dan River spill; 

 Be placed on a period of probation for five years; 

 Be required to develop and implement nationwide and 

statewide environmental compliance programs to be 

monitored by an independent Court Appointed Monitor; 

 Be regularly and independently audited, with results 

available to the public, to ensure compliance with 

environmental laws and the environmental compliance 

programs; 

 Meet the obligations imposed under federal and state 

law to excavate and close coal ash impoundments at our 

Asheville, Dan River, Riverbend, and Sutton facilities; 

and 

 Establish a toll-free number and an electronic mail 

inbox through which any person may report suspected 

violations of the environmental laws or regulations or 

compliance plans.  This toll-free number and electronic 

mail inbox will be established by May 31, 2015 and 

will be posted at www.duke-energy.com. 

 

Additionally, Duke Energy Corporation has guaranteed the 

payment of the monetary penalties and the performance of the 

nationwide and statewide environmental compliance plans. 

 

We are accountable for the spill and its aftermath and take 

responsibility for all of the violations contained in the Plea 

Agreement.  We apologize to the communities that have been 

affected by these actions.  We hope that others will learn from our 

experience. 

 

155. In a statement issued in connection with the sentencing, Duke reported that its 

settlement “closes a chapter in the company’s history.” 
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156. That chapter cannot and will not be closed until the Company’s Board of 

Directors is elected on the basis of honest and complete disclosures of material facts, not what 

was contained in the Proxy Statement on the basis of which they were just reappointed. 

COUNT I 

Violations of Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and  

Exchange Act Rules 14a-3 and 14a-9 

(False and Misleading Proxy Statements) 

 

157. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 156, as 

though fully set forth herein. 

158.  By virtue of the foregoing, defendants, directly or indirectly, by use of the mails 

or the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce of any facility of a national securities 

exchange or otherwise, solicited and permitted the use of their names to solicit proxies with 

respect to securities issued by Duke in violation of § 14(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14a-9 

thereunder, which prohibit solicitation of proxies without required information or with proxy 

statements that contain any false or misleading statement as to any material fact, or that omit any 

material fact necessary to make the statements made not false or misleading. 

159. The inaccuracies and incomplete disclosures contained in the Proxy Statement 

were material in the sense that the matters disclosed inaccurately and incompletely would have 

been important to a reasonable shareholder deciding whether to retain Directors responsible for 

these derelictions. 

160.  As a result of these materially incomplete and misleading disclosures, the Proxy 

Statement was materially inaccurate and misleading in violation of §14(a) of the Exchange Act 

and Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereunder by the SEC. 
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161. As a direct and proximate result, Duke’s suffrage process has been severely 

compromised. Plaintiff and other Duke shareholders have been deprived of accurate and material 

information upon which to base their votes with respect to the matters as to the Proxy Statement 

solicited votes, effectively negating their right to vote with respect to such matters.  

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demands judgment as follows: 

(a) An Order declaring the Proxy Statement materially false and misleading in the 

respects described in this Complaint. 

(b) An Order invalidating declaring the results of the election of Duke’s Board of 

Directors and any other votes taken or recorded pursuant to the Proxy Statement that was held 

and confirmed on May 7, 2015 on the basis of the original, materially misleading Proxy 

Statement null and void.  

(c) An Order directing the defendants to cause Duke to prepare, issue and 

disseminate a revised, curative proxy statement correcting the misleadingly incomplete Proxy 

Statement previously issued. 

(d) Awarding to plaintiff all reasonable attorneys’ fees, accountants’ and experts’ 

fees, costs, and expenses; and 

(e) Granting such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 Plaintiff demands a trial by jury with respect to all claims so triable.  
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Dated: May 26, 2015    WHITFIELD BRYSON & MASON LLP 

      /s/ Scott C. Harris   

Scott C. Harris 

900 W. Morgan Street 

Raleigh, NC 27603 

Telephone: (919) 600-5000 

Facsimile: (919) 600-5025 

       

 

      To Be Admitted Pro Hac Vice 

 

      WHITFIELD BRYSON & MASON LLP 

      Gary E. Mason 

      1625 Massachusetts Ave. NW 

      Ste. 605 

      Washington, DC 20036  

      Telephone: (202) 429-2290 

      Facsimile: (202) 429-2294 

       

      BOLOGNESE & ASSOCIATES, LLC 

Anthony J. Bolognese 

Joshua H. Grabar 

Two Penn Center 

1500 JFK Blvd., Suite 320 

Philadelphia, PA  19102 

Telephone: (215) 814-6750 

Facsimile: (215) 814-6764 

 

      Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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